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Sukhmani Purewal

From: Lennie Roberts <lennie@greenfoothills.org>
Sent: Monday, July 11, 2022 12:45 PM
To: Don Horsley; Carole Groom; Dave Pine; Warren Slocum; David Canepa
Cc: CMO_BoardFeedback; Winter King; Carmen J. Borg
Subject: Green Foothills ltr re:  Item #7 on BOS Agenda 7-12-2022; PLN2014-00410
Attachments: GF BOS Zmay 7-11-2022.pdf; GF -SMCPC Zmay 7-26-2021.pdf; Zmay Historical Landslides Dr. G. 

Trott.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of San Mateo County. Unless you recognize the sender's email address and know 
the content is safe, do not click links, open attachments or reply. 

 

Dear President Horsley and Supervisors,  
 
Attached is my letter on behalf of Green Foothills asking you to Uphold the Planning Commission’s Unanimous Decision
re the “Zmay” proposed subdivision on Open Spaces General Plan and Resource Management zoned lands as well as 
copies of my letter to the Planning Commission that was submitted to the Planning Commission. 
 
Thanks very much for considering our comments, as well as those of the affected neighbors and many other concerned 
citizens. 
 
All best, 
 
Lennie Roberts 
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July 11, 2020 
 
President Don Horsley and Members of the Board of Supervisors 
400 County Center,  
Redwood City, CA 94063 
 
Re:  Agenda Item #7, on the July 12 Agenda:  Appeal of Planning Commission’s denial of the “Zmay” 
subdivision. File No. PLN2014-00410, Z Enterprises LP, Owner, Steve and Nicolas Zmay, Applicants 
 
Dear President Horsley and Supervisors, 

On behalf of Green Foothills, I respectfully request that you uphold the Planning Commission’s 
unanimous denial of the proposed “Zmay” subdivision.   

Each of your Planning Commissioners clearly articulated their reasons for Denial.  

Commissioner Hansson summarized the problems with the proposed location of new parcels at the top of 
the property: “We are looking at a piece of land that for a lot of reasons hasn’t been developed...wetlands 
in the area, water underground, failing sewer system, steepness, landslides, old fill, and fire hazard...a 
concoction of everything you have thrown at it except for nuclear waste sitting here.”   

Commissioner Gupta stated there are many concerns with the main ones being active landslides and fire, 
and she was not going to support the Negative Declaration.   

Commissioner Ketcham said she disagreed with the conclusions of the staff report, found the Negative 
Declaration inadequate, and could not make the findings to support the project.   

Commissioner Ramirez stated that he was concerned by the fire danger, impacts to wetlands, and sewer 
line deficiencies.   

Commissioner Santacruz cited specific sections of the RM Zoning code (6324.6 (f) and 6326 criteria 3 
and noted the overwhelming opposition from Green Foothills, neighbors and other interested parties.  

The three additional conditions of approval added by staff do nothing to significantly reduce the 
exposure of the new homes and people to catastrophic wildfire and landslide hazards.   

New Condition 94 would require regular irrigation on steep slopes for 100 feet below the future homes.  
This is absurd, particularly in light of recent findings that 2021-2022 is the driest 22-year period since at 
least 800 A.D., when Vikings sailed and Mayans built temples. See:  
https://www.mercurynews.com/2022/02/14/current-drought-is-worst-in-1200-years-in-california-and-the-
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american-west-new-study-shows/  People all over California and the West are ripping out lawns and 
other water-guzzling landscaping. Furthermore, the consequences of watering these landslide-prone 
slopes which could substantially increase the potential for landslides is a potentially significant new 
impact that has not been analyzed under CEQA.    

New Condition 95 would require an ember resistant zone within five feet of each future home. This is 
duplicative of AB 3074 requirements that by January 1, 2023, a new ember-resistant zone within zero to 
5 feet of homes (“Zone 0”) must be adopted by the Board of Forestry and Fire Protection and will 
become part of the Building Codes of California.  At the Building Permit stage, the three new homes will 
have to comply, therefore Condition 95 is unnecessary.     

New Condition 96 would extend the 100-foot defensible space zone onto the “parent parcel” through 
requiring recordation of a deed restriction on the parent parcel prior to selling of the lots.  The Marin Fire 
Safe Council recommends 150 to 200 feet to protect Moderate or Steep Slope Properties: “Push fuel 
modification area beyond the 100-foot distance, if at all possible.  A target for the extended fuel 
modification area would be between 150 feet and 200 feet.”  See https://firesafemarin.org/create-a-fire-
smart-yard/topography/ 

As stated in our letter to the Planning Commission, one of the key factors affecting wildfire behavior is 
Topography.  According to Fire Safe Marin, “Wildfires burn up slope faster and more intensely than 
along flat ground. A steeper slope will result in a faster-moving fire, with longer flame lengths. While 
moderate or steep slopes greater than 20% are very dangerous, any slope can potentially increase the 
amount of heat a structure will be subject to during a wildfire.”  See: https://firesafemarin.org/create-a-
fire-smart-yard/topography/ 

Green Foothills engaged the law firm of Shute, Mihaly, and Weinberger to address the points raised by 
the Applicant’s attorney as well as deficiencies in the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS/MND); their letter has been sent separately to you.     

Regarding landslide risks, a key unaddressed issue is that a much larger historical landslide upslope of 
the property has not been mapped or analyzed by the project’s engineering geologists nor analyzed in the 
IS/MND.  See attached graphic:  Historical Landslides not mapped or considered by Engineering 
Geologists.   

All the points in our letter of July 26, 2021 support the Planning Commission’s denial and are still 
relevant.  I have attached this letter for your convenience. 

There are relatively safer locations at the bottom of the property within the nine acres surrounding the 
existing home.  They may not be as lucrative, but in today’s housing market, that difference is negligible.   

Please deny the Appeal and uphold the unanimous decision of the Planning Commission.  
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Sincerely, 

 

Lennie Roberts, Legislative Advocate 

 
 



 

Green Foothills is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
Your contribution is deductible to the fullest extent of the law, as no goods or services were provided 

in consideration of your gift. Our tax identification number is 94-6121854. 
 

 
July 26, 2021         
 
Lisa Ketcham, Chair and Planning Commissioners, 
San Mateo County Planning Commission  
455 County Center, 2nd Floor 
Redwood City, CA 94063 
 
Re:  Item #1 on the July 28, 2021 Agenda: File No. PLN2014-00410, Z Enterprises LP, Owner, 
Steve and Nicolas Zmay, Applicants 
 
Dear Chair Ketcham and Commissioners, 
 
On behalf of Green Foothills, I write to respectfully request that you Deny the above-referenced project 
for the following reasons: 
 

*The proposed subdivision is inconsistent with the County General Plan and Resource 
Management District (RM) Zoning.                                 
*The three proposed parcels would expose future residents to extraordinary hazards from 
catastrophic wildfire due to their location at the top of the property in a designated Very High Fire 
Severity Zone. 
*The proposed parcels would also expose future property owners/residents to hazards from 
landslides/mudslides due to their location on very steep (30-50%+) landslide-prone slopes. 
* There are feasible alternative locations for the subdivision. 

 
This 60-acre property is an extremely challenging site to develop because of its steep, landslide-prone 
slopes, and very high fire susceptibility.  The property is designated as Open Space in the County 
General Plan due in part to its steep slopes which: “pose severe hazards to public health or safety”. 
 
The applicant proposes to subdivide this property and create three more home sites – located at the top 
of the property along Parrott Drive.  These home sites would be on some of the steepest, most 
landslide-prone areas of the property, as well as in the area most susceptible to catastrophic wildfire.  
 
This location is not allowed by the RM Zoning District (Section 6324.6(f) which states (in relevant part):  
“No land shall be developed which is held unsuitable by the Planning Commission for its 
proposed use for reason of exposure to fire….susceptibility to mudslides or earthslides, severe 
erosion potential, steep slopes, inadequate…sewage disposal capabilities, or any other feature 
harmful to the health, safety or welfare of the future residents or property owners of the 
proposed development or the community-at-large.” 



 

Green Foothills is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
Your contribution is deductible to the fullest extent of the law, as no goods or services were provided 

in consideration of your gift. Our tax identification number is 94-6121854. 
 

 
California’s New Normal 
 
Climate change has brought increased intensity of storm events/rainfall, more severe drought, and 
increased uncontrollable, devastating wildfires.  This is widely acknowledged as California’s “New 
Normal”.  
 
This property is particularly susceptible to hazards from both extreme storms and wildfire. We need to 
do everything we can to avoid placing more people and property at risk from these hazards.    
 
Landslides:   Due to its underlying geology (Franciscan Formation) and steep slopes, this property has 
experienced multiple landslides already.  Future intense storm events will result in accelerated 
stormwater runoff that is likely to reactivate old landslides, create new ones, and even mobilize whole 
hillsides. 
 
Wildfire:  Other property characteristics also make it particularly susceptible to wildfire. Its west to 
southwest-facing steep slopes support fire dependent vegetation types (oak woodland, chamise 
chaparral, northern coastal scrub, and northern coyote brush scrub) that are highly susceptible to 
wildfire events.  Its steep slopes increase fire hazard risks.  Fires burn uphill 10-16 times more quickly 
than downhill due to pre-heating and radiant heat (per Santa Barbara County Fire Department). Urban 
Forester and Fire Ecologist Ray Moritz, inspected the Zmay site on May 5, 2021, and has concluded 
that “The proposed development is an extreme risk to the potential residents and residences of 
the proposed development and significantly exacerbates the risk to the community as a whole.”  
(Please note that Mr. Moritz was using an earlier Map of the proposed project that included four parcels; 
his comments are nonetheless still relevant to the revised Map that now has only Parcels 1, 2, and 3.)  
    
In August, 2020, the devastating CZU Lightning Complex Wildfire burned 86,000 acres and destroyed 
911 homes in San Mateo and Santa Cruz Counties.  This unprecedented fire, along with many others 
throughout California and the West, has brought into sharp focus the susceptibility of our communities to 
catastrophic wildfire.   
 
We can’t always prevent new homes from being built on existing legal parcels in Very High Fire Severity 
Zones, but we can, and we should, prevent creation of new parcels that will place people in harm’s way.  
In this case, there are alternative sites for new homes that are less hazardous.  The Applicant’s 
proposed Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map includes a 9-acre area around the existing home at 1551 
Crystal Springs Road which is labeled “To Remain Buildable.”  This area is also excluded from the lands 
covered by the proposed Conservation Easement Area. This 9-acre area could accommodate the 
proposed three parcels; there are also other alternative sites along Crystal Springs Road that are less 
hazardous than those along Parrott Drive.   



 

Green Foothills is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
Your contribution is deductible to the fullest extent of the law, as no goods or services were provided 

in consideration of your gift. Our tax identification number is 94-6121854. 
 

 
In summary, Green Foothills asks that you Deny this project based on the cited hazards to future 
homes/residents and its inconsistency with the General Plan and Zoning.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Lennie Roberts, Legislative Advocate 
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From: jackiyahn@everyactioncustom.com on behalf of Jacki Yahn
To: CMO_BoardFeedback
Subject: Item Number 7 on the July 12 Agenda: Appeal of Planning Commission’s denial of the “Zmay” subdivision. File

No. PLN2014-00410, Z Enterprises LP, Owner, Steve and Nicolas Zmay, Applicants
Date: Monday, July 11, 2022 1:10:55 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of San Mateo County. Unless you recognize the sender's email
address and know the content is safe, do not click links, open attachments or reply.

Dear Board of Supervisors,

Please uphold the unanimous decision of the Planning Commission to deny the proposed subdivision. The risks to
people and property are too great; there are other less hazardous areas for the three new lots on this property.

Sincerely,
Jacki Yahn
228 Beverly Dr  San Carlos, CA 94070-1641
jackiyahn@mac.com

mailto:jackiyahn@everyactioncustom.com
mailto:jackiyahn@everyactioncustom.com
mailto:BoardFeedback@smcgov.org
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